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Section 279 of the Companies Act 2014 By Email & Courier

Dear Mr McLoughlin

1. Purpose of letter

1.1 This letter is being submitted in response to the Invitation for Submissions on Review of

Time Period in Section 279 of the Companies Act 2014 (the “Act”) which was published by
the Department of Jobs, Enterprise & Innovation (the “DJEI") on 28 July 2016.

12 We note that two questions for consultation are set out in the consultation paper relating to
the Invitation for Submissions (the “Consultation Paper”), which are as follows:

(a) Should the time period provided for at Section 279 of the Companies Act (“Section
279") be extended beyond December 20207

(b) If extended, should this be for a specified period of time or on an open-ended basis
(i.e. with no specific end date)?

1.3 We set out below our responses to each of these questions.
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2.3
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2.6

Should the time period provided for at Section 279 of the Companies Act be extended
beyond December 2020?

As noted in the Consultation Paper, the Companies (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 2009 (the
“2009 Act”) introduced a provision equivalent to Section 279, as it was anticipated at the
time that international accounting bodies would converge International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) and US generally accepted accounting principles (“US GAAP”").

This process of convergence has not progressed in the time anticipated. Moreover, the
rationale for Section 279 (and the equivalent exemption under the 2009 Act) remains
unchanged, in that it would be unduly onerous to oblige a “relevant holding company”
(within the meaning of Section 279) to prepare financial statements under both US GAAP
and IFRS, in order to satisfy the financial reporting requirements of the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and Irish company law.

Requiring relevant holding companies to prepare and file financial statements under two
separate financial reporting regimes would represent an unnecessary burden on financial
and general corporate resources, which could otherwise be invested in the business of the
companies concerned.

We understand from those of our clients which currently prepare and file their financial
statements in accordance with US GAAP pursuant to Section 279, that creating and
maintaining separate accounting records to facilitate the production of IFRS financial
statements would involve significant once-off costs, followed by annual incremental costs
measured in millions of Euro. In our view, these additional costs would appear to produce
no benefit for shareholders in such companies (who, being investors in US-listed companies,
would be accustomed to basing their review of the financial performance of their
investments on US GAAP financial statements), the Irish government or the Irish public.

The contribution of relevant holding companies to the Irish economy is significant, in terms
of job creation, investment in research and development facilities in Ireland and Exchequer
returns. If the time period in Section 279 is not extended, we would be concerned that the
financial, administrative and reporting burden which would be imposed on such companies
may be a factor which influences a possible decision to consider re-domiciling their current
Irish operations and divert future investment from Ireland.

We also note that, in recognition of the limited convergence in financial reporting standards
which has already taken place between US GAAP and IFRS, the European Union has
accepted the substantive equivalence of US GAAP to IFRS for the presentation of
companies’ financial information for the purposes of the Transparency! and Prospectus?
Directives. This measure allows US GAAP to be used without reconciliation for the
purposes of the required presentation of financial information pursuant to these European
statutes and removes the significant additional burden which would be placed on
companies subject to these directives that produce US GAAP financial statements, who
would otherwise be required to prepare and file financial statements in accordance with two
separate financial reporting regimes.

! Buropean Commission Decision (2008/961/ EC) in relation to the Transparency Directive,
? Commission Regulation (EC) No 1289/2008 in relation to the Prospectus Directive.
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27 We respectfully submit that the imposition of such a burden through national law would be
an unjustified departure from the approach taken at European Union level, particularly
given the further anticipated convergence of IFRS and US GAAP in the coming years.

3. If extended, should this be for a specified period of time or on an open-ended basis (i.e.
with no specified end date)?

3.1 Given the lack of a clear time-frame for a future convergence of IFRS and US GAAP, we
respectfully submit that, for the reasons outlined above, the time period provided for in
Section 279 should be extended on an open-ended basis, to allow for the further anticipated
convergence of US GAAP and IFRS.

If you require any further information or would like to discuss further any aspect of this letter,
please contact Ben Gaffikin or Stephen Fitzsimons of our Dublin office.

Yours sincerely

Mo +, /
M (on Tebls

McCann FitzGerald



